

# STATE OF MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS LANSING

SHELLY EDGERTON DIRECTOR

# MICHIGAN BOARD OF CHIROPRACTIC NOVEMBER 16, 2017 MEETING

### **APPROVED MINUTES**

In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, 1976 PA 267, as amended, the Michigan Board of Chiropractic met on November 16, 2017, at the Ottawa Building, Conference Room 4, 611 West Ottawa Street, Lansing, Michigan 48933.

#### CALL TO ORDER

Donald Reno, D.C., Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 10:01 a.m.

#### **ROLL CALL**

**Members Present:** Donald Reno, D.C., Chairperson

Ronald Wilcox, Jr., D.C., Vice Chairperson

Christophe Dean, D.C. Thomas Klapp, D.C.

Robert Maciolek, Public Member Robyn Peake, Public Member

Lewis Squires, D.C.

Members Absent: Robert Huta, Public Member

**Staff Present:** Kimmy Catlin, Board Support, Boards and Committees Section

Wendy Helmic, Analyst, Compliance Section

Weston MacIntosh, Analyst, Boards and Committees Section

#### APPROVAL OF AGENDA

MOTION by Peake, seconded by Dean, to approve the agenda with the addition of CE Program Approval as an item.

A voice vote was held.

MOTION PREVAILED

#### APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Michigan Board of Chiropractic Meeting Minutes November 16, 2017 Page 2 of 7

MOTION by Squires, seconded by Klapp, to approve the August 24, 2017 meeting minutes as presented.

A voice vote was held.

**MOTION PREVAILED** 

#### REGULATORY CONSIDERATIONS

# Richard Alan Flusty, D.C. - Application for Reinstatement

MOTION by Klapp, seconded by Wilcox, to grant reinstatement.

A roll call vote was held: Yeas – Dean, Klapp, Maciolek, Peake, Squires, Wilcox

Reno

Nays - None

MOTION PREVAILED

Motion by Klapp, seconded by Wilcox, to rescind the previous motion and place item on DSC Agenda as a Reclassification.

A voice vote was held.

MOTION PREVAILED

#### **OLD BUSINESS**

Squires inquired why the Department was not renewing the Federation of Chiropractic Licensing Boards (FCLB) membership. Squires recommended the Department reconsider renewing the membership. MacIntosh advised department has made the decision but will express Squires concern to the appropriate department staff.

# **Continuing Education Program Approval**

General discussion was held regarding approval of continuing education (CE) for license renewal (Addendum 1).

MOTION by Klapp, seconded by Wilcox, to approve the continuing education programs as presented.

A voice vote was held.

**MOTION PREVAILED** 

Michigan Board of Chiropractic Meeting Minutes November 16, 2017 Page 3 of 7

General discussion was held regarding approval of continuing education (CE) for license renewal (Addendum 2).

MOTION by Klapp, seconded by Wilcox, to approve the continuing education programs as presented.

A voice vote was held.

**MOTION PREVAILED** 

### **OLD BUSINESS**

None

#### **NEW BUSINESS**

## **CE Waiver Requests**

#### **David Lim**

MOTION by Klapp, seconded by Peake, to waive the required CE for the current license cycle.

A voice vote was held.

MOTION PREVAILED

# **Robert Tripodi**

MOTION by Klapp, seconded by Wilcox, to waive the required CE for the current license cycle.

Discussion was held.

A voice vote was held.

**MOTION PREVAILED** 

#### 2018 Public Notice

Discussion was held regarding the 2018 meeting dates.

# **HPRC Appointment**

Discussion of potential candidates was held with no appointment made.

Michigan Board of Chiropractic Meeting Minutes November 16, 2017 Page 4 of 7

#### **Rules Discussion**

MacIntosh advised where the rules are in the process. MacIntosh advised he has some questions for the Rules Committee. MacIntosh stated final draft may possibly be ready for a vote at the next regularly scheduled meeting.

# **Chair Report**

Reno discussed his experience helping test students for the National Board. Reno advised it was a very good learning experience.

# **Department Update**

Macintosh announced Kim Gaedeke has been named Acting Deputy Director for the Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs and Cheryl Pezon has been named Acting Director of the Bureau of Professional Licensing.

Squires inquired on what the requirements are for learning students. MacIntosh advised to check the statute and rules.

#### PUBLIC COMMENT

None

#### **ANNOUNCEMENTS**

Maciolek informed the board of his new title as Lieutenant Maciolek. The board congratulated him.

The next regularly scheduled meeting will be held February 22, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. at the Ottawa Building, 611 West Ottawa Street, Upper Level Conference Center, Conference Room 4, Lansing, Michigan.

#### **ADJOURNMENT**

MOTION by Klapp, seconded by Maciolek, to adjourn the meeting at 10:52 a.m.

A voice vote was taken.

MOTION PREVAILED

Minutes approved by the Board on February 22, 2018.

Prepared by: Kimmy Catlin, Board Support Bureau of Professional Licensing

November 20, 2017

Michigan Board of Chiropractic Meeting Minutes November 16, 2017 Page 5 of 7

Addendum 1

# CHIROPRACTIC CONTINUING EDUCATION REVIEW November 16, 2017

#### **APPROVED PROGRAMS**

**FETTERMAN EVENTS** – Clinical Imaging and Case Studies held on November 4, 2017 in Romulus, MI for 12 hours with 2 hours in performance/ordering tests.

RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN

**FETTERMAN EVENTS** – Thompson Technique with Rob Jackson: Pediatric to Geriatric held on November 4, 2017 in Grand Rapids, MI for 12 hours with 9 hours in adjusting techniques.

RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN

**FETTERMAN EVENTS** – Inflammation & Food Sensitivities with Chiro Treatments for Neurological Decline held on October 5, 2017 in Romulus, MI for 12 hours with 4 hours in pain management.

RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN

**FETTERMAN EVENTS** – Taping Techniques & Sports Medicine held on September 30, 2017 in Flint, MI for 12 hours with 1 hour in adjusting techniques; 1 hour in sexual boundaries; 1 hour in ethics; 1 hour in pain management; 1 hour in physical measures; 2 hours in performance/ordering tests.

RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN

**FETTERMAN EVENTS** – Technique Intensive Program: Upper, Lower, & Visceral held on September 9, 2017 in Romulus, MI and October 26, 2017 in Bay City, MI and November 11, 2017 in Escanaba, MI for 12 hours with 5 hours in adjusting techniques.

RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN

**FETTERMAN EVENTS** – Taping Techniques & Functional Rehabilitation held on October 7, 2017 in Kalamazoo, MI for 12 hours with 3 hours in pain management; 2 hours in physical measures. **RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN** 

**FETTERMAN EVENTS** – Chiropractic Shoulder Treatments to Avoid Surgery held on November 9, 2017 in Marquette, MI for 12 hours with 2 hours in pain management; 2 hours in physical measures.

RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN

**FETTERMAN EVENTS –** Chiropractic Treatment for Neurological Decline held on November 4, 2017 in Traverse City, MI for 12 hours with 2 hours in pain management.

RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN

**FETTERMAN EVENTS** – Inflammation & Food Sensitivities with Functional Rehabilitation held on November 2, 2017 in Grand Rapids, MI for 12 hours with 2 hours in pain management; 3 hours in physical measures. **RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN** 

**FETTERMAN EVENTS** – Diagnostic Tests & Treatments with Anatomy held on October 28, 2017 in Lansing, MI for 12 hours with 2 hours in adjusting techniques; 1 hour in pain management; 3 hours in performance/ordering tests.

RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN

Michigan Board of Chiropractic Meeting Minutes November 16, 2017 Page 6 of 7

**FETTERMAN EVENTS** – Current Pain Methods & Impacts held on November 11, 2017 in Flint, MI for 12 hours with 1 hour in adjusting techniques.

RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN

MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF CHIROPRACTORS – Ethics and Boundaries held from January 1 to December 31, 2018 online for 2 hours with 1 hour in sexual boundaries and 1 hour in ethics. RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN

**MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF CHIROPRACTORS** - Chiropractic Provider Audits held from January 1 to December 31, 2018 online for 2 hours in practice management.

RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN

**MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF CHIROPRACTORS** – Documentation held from January 1 to December 31, 2018 online for 1 hour in practice management.

RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN

MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF CHIROPRACTORS – EOS: The Entrepreneurial Operation System offered from January 1 to December 31, 2018 online for 1 hour in practice management.

RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN

# **DENIED PROGRAMS**

N/A

PENDING PROGRAMS-BOARD DISCUSSION

N/A

Michigan Board of Chiropractic Meeting Minutes November 16, 2017 Page 7 of 7

Addendum 2

# CHIROPRACTIC CONTINUING EDUCATION REVIEW November 16, 2017

# **APPROVED PROGRAMS**

**MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF CHIROPRACTORS –** Chiropractic: A Key To America's Opioid Exit Strategy held on August 24, 2017 – December 31, 2017 online for a total of 1 hour in pain management. **RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN** 

MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF CHIROPRACTORS – Risk Management: Chiropractic Legal Panel held on November 8, 2017 in Troy, MI for a total of 1 hour in practice management.

RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN

**MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF CHIROPRACTORS –** MAC 2017 Express Convention held on November 18 – November 19, 2017 in Mount Pleasant, MI for a total of 30 hours, with 5 hours in adjusting technique; 7 hours in practice management; 1 hour in sexual boundaries; 1 hour in ethics; 1 hour in pain management; 4 hours in physical measures; 4 hours in performance/ordering tests.

RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN

**MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF CHIROPRACTORS –** Athletic And Kinesio Taping For The Sports Chiropractor held on January 1 – December 31, 2018 online for a total of 2 hours in pain management. **RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN** 

**MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF CHIROPRACTORS –** Detoxification And Cleansing With Nutritional Supplements held on January 1 – December 31, 2018 online for a total of 1 hour in pain management. **RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN** 

MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF CHIROPRACTORS – Safe Natural Alternatives For Managing Pain held on January 1 – December 31, 2018 online for a total of 1 hour in pain management.

RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN

MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF CHIROPRACTORS – Natural Supplement Choices For Stress held on January 1 – December 31, 2018 online for a total of 1 hour in pain management.

RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN

MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF CHIROPRACTORS – Benefitting From A Supplemental Weight Loss Program held on January 1 – December 31, 2018 online for a total of 1 hour in pain management. RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN

MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF CHIROPRACTORS – Extremities And Rehab: Maximizing The Human System held on January 1 – December 31, 2018 online for a total of 1 hour in pain management.

RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN

MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF CHIROPRACTORS – Stress, Structure, And Neurology held on January 1 – December 31, 2018 online for a total of 1 hour in pain management.

RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN

MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF CHIROPRACTORS – The Impact Of Lower Extremity Dysfunction On Pelvic Pain held on January 1 – December 31, 2018 online for a total of 1 hour in pain management.

RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN

Michigan Board of Chiropractic Meeting Minutes November 16, 2017 Page 8 of 7

**MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF CHIROPRACTORS –** The Foot: Anatomy, Physiology, And Three Common Conditions held on January 1 – December 31, 2018 online for a total of 1 hour in pain management. **RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN** 

MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF CHIROPRACTORS – Chiropractic: A Key To America's Opioid Exit Strategy held on January 1 – December 31, 2018 online for a total of 1 hour in pain management.

RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN

**OMNI CHIROPRACTIC SEMINARS** – Chiropractic Upper Cervical Technique Program W/ Pain Management And Test held on March 24, 2018 and March 25, 2018 in Romulus, MI for a total of 12 hours, with 7 hours in adjusting technique; 1 hour in pain management; 2 hours in physical measures; 2 hours in performance/ordering tests.

RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN

**HEALTHQUEST –** Testing, Technique And Successful Case Management Of Today's Chiropractic Patient held on October 6 – 7, 2017 in Farmington, MI for a total of 15 hours, with 2 hours in adjusting technique; 1 hour in sexual boundaries; 1 hour in ethics; 1 hour in pain management; 2 hours in physical measures; 2 hours in performance/ordering tests.

RECOMMENDATION PROVIDED BY CHRISTOPHE DEAN

## **DENIED PROGRAMS**

N/A

PENDING PROGRAMS-BOARD DISCUSSION

N/A